

---

# ACP RP 1001-2-202x

## Recommended Practice for Offshore Safety Training and Medical Requirements

AMERICAN CLEAN POWER ASSOCIATION  
Standards Committee



## AMERICAN NATIONAL STANDARD

Approval of an American National Standard requires verification by ANSI that the requirements for due process, consensus, and other criteria for approval have been met by the standards developer. Consensus is established when, in the judgment of the ANSI Board of Standards Review, substantial agreement has been reached by directly and materially affected interests. Substantial agreement means much more than a simple majority, but not necessarily unanimity.

Consensus requires that all views and objections be considered, and that a concerted effort be made toward their resolution.

The use of American National Standards is completely voluntary; their existence does not in any respect preclude anyone, whether he has approved the standards or not, from manufacturing, marketing, purchasing, or using products, processes, or procedures not conforming to the standards.

The American National Standards Institute does not develop standards and will in no circumstances give an interpretation of any American National Standard. Moreover, no person shall have the right or authority to issue an interpretation of an American National Standard in the name of the American National Standards Institute. Requests for interpretations should be addressed to the secretariat or sponsor whose name appears on the title page of this standard.

Caution Notice: This American National Standard may be revised or withdrawn at any time. The procedures of the American National Standards Institute require that action be taken periodically to reaffirm, revise, or withdraw this standard. Purchasers of American National Standards may receive current information on all standards by calling or writing the American National Standards Institute, 11 West 42nd Street, New York, NY, 10036, phone (212) 642-4900.

## AMERICAN CLEAN POWER ASSOCIATION STANDARDS

Standards promulgated by the American Clean Power Association (ACP) conform to the ACP Standards Development Procedures adopted by the ACP Board of Directors. The procedures are intended to ensure that ACP standards reflect a consensus to persons substantially affected by the standard. The ACP Standards Development Procedures are intended to be in compliance with the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) Essential Requirements. Standards developed under the ACP Standards Development Procedures are intended to be eligible for adoption as American National Standards.

**Attribution:** No part of this standard may be reproduced or utilized in any form without proper attribution to the American Clean Power Association. Credit should be acknowledged as follows: “ACP RP 1001-2-202x Recommended Practice for Offshore Safety Training and Medical Requirements© The American Clean Power Association.”

**Disclaimer:** ACP Standards are developed through a consensus process of interested parties administered by the American Clean Power Association. ACP cannot be held liable for products claiming to be in conformance with this standard.

Published by:  
American Clean Power Association  
1299 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW  
Suite 1300  
Washington D.C. 20004  
[www.cleanpower.org](http://www.cleanpower.org)

© 2024 American Clean Power Association. All Rights Reserved.

## NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER

The American Clean Power Association (“ACP”) has provided this Document for the use subject to the following notices and disclaimers. This Document is proprietary, and its use is subject to a legally binding license agreement and disclaimer (“Agreement”) described herein and available on ACP’s website at <https://cleanpower.org/standards-development/>, which may be updated from time to time. Do not use this Document for any purpose unless and until you read the Agreement. By viewing or otherwise using this Document, you hereby warrant and represent that you have read and agree to be legally bound by the Agreement and are authorized to bind not only yourself to the Agreement, but the organization for which you are accessing this Document.

### **Notice and Disclaimer Concerning ANSI Process**

Certain ACP standards and best practice publications, including this Document, are developed through a voluntary consensus standards development process. ACP administered the process in accordance with the procedures of the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) to promote fairness in the development of consensus. This process brings together volunteers and/or seeks out the views of persons who have an interest in the topic covered by this Document. The information in this Document was considered technically sound by the consensus of persons engaged in the development and approval of the Document at the time it was developed.

### **Notice and Disclaimer Concerning Accuracy of Information and Liability Concerning the Use of ACP Publications**

Every effort has been made to assure the accuracy and reliability of the data and information contained in this Document; however, ACP did not draft this Document and it did not independently test, evaluate or verify the accuracy or completeness of any information or the soundness of any judgments contained in its publications. ACP disclaims and makes no guarantee or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of any information published herein.

In publishing and making this Document available, ACP is not rendering professional or other services for or on behalf of any person or entity. This Document, and ACP publications in general, necessarily address problems of a general nature. ACP disclaims and makes no guarantee or warranty, express or implied, that the information in this Document or its other publications will fulfill any of your purposes or needs. ACP does not guarantee the performance of any individual manufacturer’s or seller’s products or services by virtue of this Document.

Users of this Document should not rely exclusively on the information contained in this Document and should apply sound business, scientific, engineering, and safety judgment in employing the information contained herein or, as appropriate, seek the advice of a competent professional in determining the exercise of reasonable care in any given circumstance. Information and other standards on the topic covered by this Document may be available from other sources, which the user may wish to consult for additional views or information not covered by this Document. Use of this Document is strictly voluntary. ACP has no power to, nor does it assume any obligation to police or enforce compliance with the contents of this Document. ACP does not certify, test, or inspect products, designs, or installations for safety or health purposes. Any certification or other statement of compliance with any health or safety-related information in this Document shall not be attributable to ACP and is solely the responsibility of the certifier or maker of the statement.

ACP disclaims liability for any personal injury, property or other damages of any nature whatsoever, whether special, indirect, consequential or compensatory, directly or indirectly resulting from the publication, use of, application, or reliance on this Document or on any of its other publications, even if advised of the possibility of such damage and regardless of whether such damage was foreseeable. Additionally, ACP does not warrant or represent that the use of the material contained in this Document is free from patent infringement. ACP publications are supplied “AS IS” and “WITH ALL FAULTS.”

### **Laws & Regulations**

When using this Document, local, state and federal laws and regulations should be reviewed. Compliance with the provisions of this Document does not constitute compliance with any applicable legal requirements. In making its publications and this Document available, ACP does not intend to urge action that is not in compliance with

applicable laws, and nor may these documents be construed as urging such actions. Users of this Document and other ACP publications should take into account state, local, federal, or international data privacy and data ownership requirements in the context of assessing and using the publications in compliance with applicable legal requirements.

DRAFT

ACP Environmental, Health, and Safety Standards Committee members, at the time the standard was approved:

<b>Organization</b>	<b>Primary</b>	<b>Alternate</b>
Acciona Energy USA Global LLC	Karl Delooff	Andrew Ritger
ALLETE	Heather Cooke	
Alliant Energy	Jon Nietzel	Kent Sodawasser
Allsafe Elevator Inspections LLC	Theresa Tsamoutalis	
Avangrid Renewables	David Labelle	Kristy Abel
Avanti Wind Systems	Luke Metzinger	
Clearway Energy Group LLC	Jeff Court	Jeff Sampeer
Deutsche Windtechnik Inc.	Patrick Lavell	Russell Leach
EGE Haina	Ramon Then	Mariano Inchaustegui
Elevator Industry Work Preservation Fund	Carisa Barrett	Eric Rogers
Enel Green Power North America Inc.	Adam Sotirakopoulos	Scott Bramlett
Ensa North America	Rob Siegel	
FieldCore - A GE Company	Chris McKee	Michael Kelley
Firetrace International	Angela Krcmar	
GE Renewable Energy	Daniel Olson	
Goldwind Americas	Doug Schultz	
High Plains Technology Center	Primary	Taylor Burnett
HSB - Hartford Steam Boiler	Linkesh Diwan	Neil Ramchandani
Infrastructure & Energy Alternatives, Inc.	Kevin Turner	Terry Pedigo
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative	Alden Zeitz	
Kalamazoo Valley Community College	Thomas Sutton	
Leeward Renewable Energy	Grayling Vander Velde	
Liberty Power	Ester Di Giovanni	Matthew Macdonald
Mortenson	Chris Daniels	
National Grid Renewables	Gemma Smith	Zach Chamberlain
Ørsted Onshore North America	Diego Ramirez	
Ørsted Wind Power North America LLC	David Yang	
Pattern Energy Group Services, LP	Robert Milligan	
Run Energy LP	Alan Nelson	Shawn St. Cyr
RWE Renewables Americas, LLC	Ryan Dove	Chris Jenkins
Shermco Industries	Kevin Alewine	
Siemens Gamesa Renewable Energy	Wesley Witt	Von Bui
SKYLOTEC North America LP	Kurani Seyhan	
Tech Safety Lines Inc.	Reggie Ham	
Tempest Group Inc.	Cynthia E. Cuenin	Dave Smith
Tetra Tech Inc.	Ron Beck	
TUF-TUG Products	Joey Deuer	
Wanzek Construction	Barry Morris	
World Wind & Solar	Dwayne Kitchen	

ACP Offshore Safety Training Subcommittee members, at the time the standard was approved:

**Organization**

Avangrid  
Aimereon, Inc.  
Atlantic Shores Offshore Wind  
Equinor  
GE Renewable Energy  
Marine Learning Systems  
MHI Vestas Offshore Wind  
Orsted Wind Power North America LLC  
Pattern Energy Group Services, LP  
Robur Group USA  
Saint James Marine  
Shell  
Siemens Gamesa Renewable Energy  
Siemens Gamesa Renewable Energy  
Siemens Gamesa Renewable Energy  
SKYLOTEC North America LP  
Spire Engineers  
Tempest Group Inc.  
Tetrattech  
Vineyard Wind  
World Wind & Solar

**Name**

Edward Chargualaf  
Benjamin Chou  
Graham Cranston  
Robb Hall  
Michael Hanson  
Murray Goldberg  
Tim Axelsson  
David Yang  
Robert Milligan  
Ron Crabbe  
Michael Saint James  
Dan Cushman  
Von Bui  
Randy Soterhou  
Desiree Ugarte  
Kurani Seyhan  
Rachael Roberts  
Cynthia E. Cuenin  
Rob Beck  
Geoff Nield  
Dwayne Kitchen

## Table of Contents

Offshore Safety Training and Medical Requirements .....	1
1. General Information .....	1
2. Safety Training Requirements Based on Personnel Role .....	2
3. Medical Clearance Requirements Based on Personnel Role .....	3
4. Recommended Safety Training Based on Risk; Mandatory at the Discretion of the Developer.....	3

# Offshore Safety Training and Medical Requirements

## 1. General Information

### 1.1 Purpose

This Recommended Practice document serves the need of the offshore wind industry to develop, analyze, and communicate the appropriate employer requirements for recognized hazards of persons conducting work offshore. This document is intended to supplement or work in conjunction with a relevant Safety Management System (SMS), as well as any employer-specific training and qualifications for workers to be considered competent, trained, or qualified in the completion of their assigned work. This document is not intended to focus on a specific site or project, so hazards specific to a given site or project shall be assessed and managed outside of this document and in accordance with recognized practices and methodologies.

### 1.2 Scope

- 1.2.1 It is the intent of this standard to provide the offshore wind industry with an identified list of minimum and recommended safety training and medical requirements for persons performing work activities on offshore facilities that may be installed and vessels that may be deployed in U.S. ~~federal~~ waters.

Clarifications on applicability:

- ~~• This recommended practice does not cover safety requirements for activities on vessels where U.S. Coast Guard (USCG) or the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Maritime jurisdiction applies.~~
- ~~• This recommended practice does not cover safety requirements of activities within 3 nautical miles from the coastline, where OSHA standards apply.~~
- This recommended practice is not intended to cover task-specific training or worker qualifications (which should be based on hazard identification and risk assessment).
- This recommended practice does not cover diving, ~~rope access, personnel transfer~~ or aviation operations.

This recommended practice is intended to be aligned with other applicable standards/guidelines.

- 1.2.2 This document covers offshore wind farm assets in U.S. waters, which includes federal and state waters. ~~Users should be aware that assets installed in state waters may be subject to additional regulations not detailed in this document.~~ Nothing in this document relieves any party from complying with requirements in U.S. state and federal regulations, including occupational health and safety regulations.

### 1.3 Definitions

- 1.3.1 **Offshore Operations Personnel** - Persons who are transported over water or on a vessel in the water for the purpose of accessing or conducting work on an offshore facility, as defined by the applicable authority having jurisdiction.

Examples: Offshore wind farm technicians, offshore substation/turbine workers, specialty contractors (rope access, electrical component work, supplier technician)

- 1.3.2 **Vessel-Based Personnel** - Any person, including maritime crew members and supernumeraries, who are engaged in works of any capacity to operate a vessel or to support vessel operations. This category does not include personnel on a vessel performing installation, modification, or operation-related works on offshore facilities, who should be considered offshore operations personnel.

Examples: Geophysical & geotechnical survey crews, consent personnel conducting offshore environmental surveys, personnel engaged in measurement activities such as meteorological mast and FLIDAR (Floating Light Detecting and Ranging) equipment offshore, remotely operated vehicle (ROV) operators, or vessel crane operators.

- 1.3.3 **Limited Risk Personnel** - Persons that have boarded a vessel to transit out to sea but are not performing physical work involving the use of physical tools or equipment. The limited risk personnel should not be involved in any aspect of the vessel operation.



Examples: Developer client reps, Fisheries Liaison Officers (FLO), office-based personnel visiting the offshore windfarm and staying on the vessel, non-employee individuals visiting an offshore facility such as media, Protected Species Observers, regulatory inspectors, vessel passengers, and site/project visitor, etc.

- 1.3.4 ~~Facility—An offshore structure or installation that is permanently or temporarily attached to the seabed of the OCS. Facilities include any structures; devices; appurtenances; gathering, transmission, and distribution cables; pipelines; and permanently moored vessels. Any group of Outer Continental Shelf OCS installations interconnected with walkways, or any group of installations that includes a central or primary installation with one or more satellite or secondary installations, is a single facility. BOEM and BSEE may decide that the complexity of the installations justifies their classification as separate facilities.~~

## 2. Safety Training Requirements Based on Personnel Role

This section ~~is intended to identify~~ the training requirements for all workers involved in an offshore wind farm project prior to accessing a vessel or offshore facility. The personnel categories within Table 1 ~~are intended to identify~~ identifies the required trainings based on the potential exposure to hazards inherent in the role. Where a training is required, it is denoted with a “X”. Where a refresher of the required training is denoted as “Yes”, the continued refresher of the training should be completed based on the guideline established within the training standard selected, including the validity period and method of revalidation.

All workers accessing a vessel or offshore facility shall be trained in accordance to the applicable Safety Management System (SMS). Each worker shall be familiar with the general rules and workplace management procedures referenced within ~~SMS~~ this documents as an onboarding training, known as a site induction. The site induction should identify the applicable information necessary for a worker to perform their activities in accordance to the SMS, including but not limited to: a general overview of the project, requirements for offshore facility access, methods of communication while offshore, restricted or exclusion areas, medical support or arrangements and worker responsibilities for health and safety management. The information within the site induction shall be project specific but also include vessel or offshore facility specific information where appropriate.

**Table 1 – Safety Training Requirements**

	Safety Training Requirement	Refresher Required?	Offshore Operations Personnel	Vessel Based Personnel	Limited Risk Personnel
1	Emergency Response Plan	Yes	X	X	X
2	Fire Safety and Extinguisher Use	Yes	X	Required as needed under USCG basic safety training, Standards of Training, Certification and Watchkeeping for Seafarers (STCW) basic firefighting, or vessel operator’s safety management system	
3	Warning Signs and Tags	No	X		
4	Work at Heights / Rescue	Yes	X		Required If Conducting an Offshore Transfer
5	Incident Reporting	No	X	X	X
6	First Aid / CPR / AED (automated external defibrillator)	Yes	X	Required as needed under USCG basic safety training, STCW basic firefighting, or vessel operator’s safety management system	

7	Site Induction	<u>Yes</u>	X	X	X
8	Sea Survival	<u>Yes</u>	X	X	Required If Staying On Vessel > 24 Hours

### 3. Medical Clearance Requirements Based on Personnel Role

This section is ~~intended to identify~~ identifies the medical clearance requirements for all workers involved in an offshore wind farm project prior to accessing a vessel or offshore facility. The personnel categories within Table 2 ~~are intended to identify~~ identifies the required medical clearance based on the potential risk of delayed access to primary medical care. Where a training is required, it is denoted with a “X”. Where a refresher of the required medical clearance is denoted as “Yes”, the continued refresher of the medical clearance should be based on the guideline established within the medical clearance standard selected, including the validity period and method of revalidation.

Employers involved in work at heights or the use of fall protection equipment shall ensure users of fall protection equipment do not exceed the equipment’s weight capacity rating.

**Table 2 – Medical Clearance Requirements**

	Medical Clearance Requirement	Refresher Required?	Offshore Operations Personnel	Vessel Based Personnel	Limited Risk Personnel
1	Fitness For Duty Evaluation	<u>Yes</u>	X	Required as needed under USCG basic safety training, STCW basic firefighting, or vessel operator’s safety management system	
2	Drug Screen	<u>Yes</u>	X	Required as needed under USCG basic safety training, STCW basic firefighting, or vessel operator’s safety management system	
3	Medical Exam	<u>Yes</u>	X	Required as needed under USCG basic safety training, STCW basic firefighting, or vessel operator’s safety management system	

### 4. Recommended Safety Training Based on Risk; Mandatory at the Discretion of the Developer

This section is ~~is intended to identify~~ identifies the safety training recommended for relevant workers involved in an offshore wind farm project prior to accessing a vessel or offshore facility due to the prevalence of the hazard or the need to assess risk, which is prevalent within the offshore wind industry. While not all Offshore Operations Personnel may be exposed to these hazards, a developer may identify these safety trainings as required within their Safety Management System due to the risk or prevalence within the construction and/or operational activities. Where training is recommended, it is denoted with a “X” within Table 3.

**Table 3 – Recommended Safety Training**

	<b><del>Recommended Safety Training</del></b>	<b><del>Topic</del> <u>Recommended Safety Training</u></b>	<b><del>Refresher Recommended</del> <u>Required?</u> <b>(to be determined by the developer).</b></b>	<b>Offshore Operations Personnel</b>
1	<del>Training</del>	Dropped Objects	<del>No</del> <u>Yes</u>	<b>X</b>
2	<del>Training</del>	Hazard Identification / Risk Assessment	<del>No</del> <u>Yes</u>	<b>X</b>
3	<del>Training</del>	Heat and Cold Stress	<del>No</del> <u>Yes</u>	<b>X</b>
4	<del>Training</del>	Manual Material Handling	<del>No</del> <u>Yes</u>	<b>X</b>